
 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the District office 
at (909) 797-5117, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the workshop packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 

 
 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop 
Tuesday, November 29, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. 

 
 

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building 
 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Ken Munoz, Division 1 

Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2 
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3 
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4 
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5 

 
 
I. Call to Order 
II. Public Comments  At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its 

jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.   
III. Staff Report 
IV. Presentations 

A. Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’s Action Plan 
Related to the State Water Resources Control Board Water Conservation 
Restrictions [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-162 - Page 12 of 112] 

V. Capital Improvement Projects 
A. Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking Water Reservoir 

R-12.4 - Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-163 - Page 21 of 112] 
B. Notice of Completion for the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility Digester 

Cleaning and Cover Replacement Project [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-164 - 
Page 25 of 112] 

C. Status Report on the Regional Drinking Water Purification and Recycled Water 
Purification Project [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-165 - Page 27 of 112] 

D. Authorization to Implement Phase II of the Automated Meter Infrastructure Project 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166 - Page 30 of 112] 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 1 of 112

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2 
 
 

 

VI. Policy Issues 
A. Policy Discussion Regarding the Hauling of Drinking Water from Construction 

Meters Connected to the Potable Water System [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-
167 - Page 52 of 112] 

VII. Development Projects 
A. Overview of Development Agreement No. 2016-08 to Provide Water and Sewer 

Facilities and Service to the Private Development of Assessor Parcel Numbers 
0322-102-49, 0322-102-50, and 0322-102-51 by American Investments 
Management [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168 - Page 66 of 112] 

VIII. Administrative Issues 
A. Overview of a Proposed Resolution Setting Fees for the Installation of Automated 

Meter Infrastructure for New Drinking Water and Recycled Water Services 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 16-169 - Page 83 of 112] 

B. Overview of a Claim for Tree Removal at 11975 4th Street, Yucaipa - Dini Martz 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170 - Page 85 of 112] 

C. Overview of a Suggested Revision to the District’s Participation in the OmniEarth 
Grant offered by the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 16-171 - Page 96 of 112] 

D. Consideration of Appointing a Representative to the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District Advisory Commission on Water Policy [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 16-172 - Page 97 of 112] 

E. Reorganization of the Board of Directors [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-173 - 
Page 99 of 112] 

F. Oath of Office for Yucaipa Valley Water District Director Lonni Granlund and 
Director Chris Mann [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-174 - Page 101 of 112] 

IX. Director Comments 
X. Adjournment  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 2 of 112



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 3 of 112



 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 4 of 112



 
 

Water Recycling May Prompt New 
Environmental Concerns 

Treated sewage has been discharged for decades into Western rivers. 
It turns out this provides vital aquatic habitat in stressed rivers, as 

revealed by concern over a major Sacramento water recycling 
proposal. 

 
 

 

Wastewater recycling is being hailed in many communities as the answer to 
ongoing drought problems. By cleaning sewage effluent to extract pure water, 
it’s possible to create a sustainable water supply that is cheaper than seawater 
desalination or buying a new water supply. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 5 of 112



But there’s a little-recognized downside to water recycling: It may damage 
wildlife habitats already imperiled by water scarcity. 

That’s because many rivers in California and the West are already so 
extensively tapped for human purposes that our sewage effluent – dumped 
back into streams after treatment – provides an important share of the stream 
flows that remain. 

Even as California’s State Water Resources Control Board encourages water 
recycling through grants, low-interest loans, and streamlined regulations, 
other state agencies are raising objections. 

In September, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife filed a formal 
protest against a water recycling proposal by the Sacramento Regional County 
Sanitation District. The department alleges that by diverting as much as 
50,000 acre-feet (62m cubic meters) of water per year from its existing 
Sacramento River discharge, the district may deprive endangered salmon and 
other species of important habitat. 

The situation puts the Sacramento district in a Catch-22, because its water 
recycling project is partly motivated by the protection of another species: 
Delta smelt. A 2014 order by the state water board requires the district to 
clean up its effluent, which the board determined may be harming the aquatic 
food chain in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. 

The regional sanitation district is the largest single discharger of treated 
wastewater in the Delta watershed. Most of this effluent is released into the 
Sacramento River near Freeport. 

“The thing that strikes me as interesting is … the state as a whole has 
determined this is a good idea to recycle water,” said Christoph Dobson, 
director of policy and planning at the Sacramento regional sanitation district. 
“So you would hope the state would then be supportive of projects, 
particularly projects like this, that have multiple benefits to them.” 

It certainly says something about the strain on California water supplies when 
treated human sewage comes to be seen as vital to fishery habitat. 

It certainly says something about the strain on California water supplies when 
treated human sewage comes to be seen as vital to fishery habitats. But it 
also may represent a new understanding of the water cycle in the state. After 
all, that effluent mostly originated as fresh water pumped out of a river 
somewhere upstream. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 6 of 112



The Department of Fish and Wildlife fears that salmon, splittail, sturgeon and 
other fish could be imperiled if effluent discharges to the Sacramento River 
are reduced, especially as the drought continues and river flows are low. 

Lauren Mulloy, water rights coordinator at Fish and Wildlife, said the recycling 
project is akin to proposing a new water diversion on the Sacramento River. 
And water supplies are so tight in the region that a new diversion of equal size 
would also face a protest, she said. 

“When we get discharges into these water courses for many years – 
sometimes 50 years – it becomes part of the flow regime that the water course 
and wildlife expect to see on an annual basis,” Mulloy said. “So taking it out 
is the same as proposing a new diversion.” 

A new state water quality permit approved in 2013 requires the regional 
sanitation district to clean up its discharge effluent. To comply, the district is 
building what it calls the EchoWater Project. With a price tag of at least $1.5 
billion, it will modify existing operations to achieve so-called “tertiary” 
treatment, a common practice in the industry, but one which the Sacramento 
district has not yet adopted. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 7 of 112

http://www.regionalsan.com/echowater-project


A related project will divert about one-fifth of this effluent, under present 
conditions, into a new distribution system that will deliver recycled wastewater 
to 16,000 acres (65 sq km) of farmland in south Sacramento County. Some 
of the water will also be provided to nearby Stone Lakes National Wildlife 
Refuge to augment wetland habitat. 

The diverted water amounts to about 45 million gallons (205m liters) per day, 
or about 50,000 acre-feet per year. The project is estimated to cost 
$200 million. 

The district estimates this will reduce total Sacramento River flows by 1 to 2 
percent, depending on river conditions. 

That doesn’t sound like much. But it could be enough, under some conditions, 
to produce violations in key water quality standards in the Delta. This would 
require other agencies to release precious stored water from 
upstream reservoirs. 

But Dobson said this won’t be a permanent concern. Eventually, he said, the 
irrigation water supplied to farmers will recharge depleted groundwater that 
they now rely upon. When that happens, the aquifer will again be connected 
to the Sacramento River, and flows in the river will return to conditions that 
existed before the recycling project began. 

“In the long run, it’s not having a significant reduction in river flows. It 
ultimately makes its way back to the river in various ways,” he said. “That’s 
one of the key benefits of the project.” 

The state water board has set a goal to increase water recycling by 1 million 
acre-feet per year, statewide, through 2020, and at least 2 million acre-feet 
per year by 2030. 

Indeed, the ongoing drought has produced so much interest in wastewater 
recycling that a state fund to support such projects has been temporarily 
depleted of money. 

So it is likely that more water recycling projects will encounter similar protests 
about declining streamflows. 

“While it’s a good idea to use more recycled water, we recognize that it also 
means reducing stream flows and we need to evaluate if that reduction causes 
a problem,” said Timothy Moran, a spokesman for the state water board. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 8 of 112

http://www.regionalsan.com/south-county-ag-program
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/water_recycling_policy/docs/rwp_revtoc.pdf
https://www.newsdeeply.com/water/articles/2016/10/03/water-recycling-spikes-demand-for-state-loans
https://www.newsdeeply.com/water/articles/2016/10/03/water-recycling-spikes-demand-for-state-loans


If necessary, the board will impose rules on new water recycling projects to 
protect streamflows, Moran said. 

Another example can be found in Ventura County, where the city of Oxnard 
plans to double its capacity to recycle sewage effluent. This has brought 
lawsuits by the Wishtoyo Foundation, a nonprofit arm of the Chumash Tribe, 
against both the state water board and the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality 
Control Board. 

The foundation is concerned about protecting the Santa Clara River. In the 
lawsuit, it argues the two state agencies should be required to conduct a 
comprehensive analysis of water needs in the river basin before allowing more 
water recycling. 

Jason Weiner, attorney for the foundation, said Oxnard’s recycling program is 
intended to prop up unsustainable water uses in the region that already 
withdraw water from the Santa Clara River, such as strawberry farming and 
golf course irrigation. 

The wastewater recycling itself does not result in any diversion of water from 
the river. But those who benefit from the recycled water, he said, should be 
required to stop diverting an equivalent amount of water from the river. 

As it stands now, he said, new water recycling projects are being approved 
without any consideration for the Santa Clara River’s needs. The river is 
almost completely dry much of the year, yet also home to an endangered 
population of steelhead trout. 

Opening arguments in the case are expected in 2017. If successful, it could 
require all new wastewater recycling projects in the state to conduct a 
“reasonable use” analysis to ensure the water they produce benefits the 
environment and is not wasteful. 

“The issue here and across the state is, you can bring all the recycled water 
in the world online, but that won’t help if you allow it to be used wastefully,” 
Weiner said. “We’re arguing the boards have a mandatory duty to ensure 
reasonable use and protection of public trust resources in their allocation of 
the recycled water.” 

In the Sacramento case, the regional sanitation district is expected to begin 
negotiations with the Department of Fish and Wildlife soon in an effort to 
resolve its concerns. Mulloy said she hopes to see a rule added that will adjust 
the volume of water diverted for recycling based on flow conditions in 
the river. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 9 of 112

http://www.scrwatershed.org/attachments/article/96/Advanced%20Water%20Purification%20Facility%20Capacity%20Expansion.pdf
http://www.wishtoyo.org/reasonable-water-use-in-flow-public-trust-campaign/


“I’m expecting we’re going to see more recycled water projects as agencies 
need to stretch their water for their service areas,” she said. “I like the 
recycled water projects. I also don’t want to see it harm things. There’s got to 
be a balance.” 

 
 
Source:  https://www.newsdeeply.com/water/articles/2016/11/21/water-recycling-may-

prompt-new-environmental-concerns 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 10 of 112



 

 

Presentations 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 11 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-162 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
Action Plan Related to the State Water Resources Control Board Water 
Conservation Restrictions 

 
On May 5, 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”) adopted emergency 
regulations to achieve a 25% statewide reduction in potable urban water use.  These stringent 
water use regulations required the Yucaipa Valley Water District to achieve a 36% reduction from 
the amount of drinking water produced in 2013.  In March 2016, the SWRCB modified the 
emergency water conservation requirements for Yucaipa Valley Water District to a 34% reduction 
from the amount of drinking water produced in 2013.  In June 2016, the District self-certified a 
water conservation reduction of 20%.  Each level of regulated water conservation requirement is 
illustrated in the chart below as the red-dashed line. 

 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

Ja
n-

12
M

ar
-1

2
M

ay
-1

2
Ju

l-1
2

Se
p-

12
N

ov
-1

2
Ja

n-
13

M
ar

-1
3

M
ay

-1
3

Ju
l-1

3
Se

p-
13

N
ov

-1
3

Ja
n-

14
M

ar
-1

4
M

ay
-1

4
Ju

l-1
4

Se
p-

14
N

ov
-1

4
Ja

n-
15

M
ar

-1
5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
l-1

5
Se

p-
15

N
ov

-1
5

Ja
n-

16
M

ar
-1

6
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

l-1
6

Se
p-

16
N

ov
-1

6

Th
ou

sa
nd

 G
al

lo
ns

Water Consumption and Drought Regulatory Requirements

Potable Water Demand (kgal)

SWRCB Drought Compliance Goal

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 12 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-162  Page 2 of 8 

During the current drought, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has been able to increase the 
amount of recycled water delivered throughout our service area.  The chart below shows the 
monthly delivery quantity to District customers. 
 

 
 
The customers of the Yucaipa Valley Water District responded accordingly and significantly 
reduced the amount of drinking water consumed per person.  As shown below, the per capita 
drinking water consumption dropped significantly from 366 R-GPCD1 in August 2013 to 222 R-
GPCD in August 2015, representing a decrease of 39%.  However, due to the hot weather this 
summer and the eased water conservation requirements statewide, the R-GPCD jumped 
significantly. 
 

                                            
1 R-GPCD - Residential gallons per capita per day. 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

Ja
n-

12

M
ar

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

Ju
l-1

2

Se
p-

12

N
ov

-1
2

Ja
n-

13

M
ar

-1
3

M
ay

-1
3

Ju
l-1

3

Se
p-

13

N
ov

-1
3

Ja
n-

14

M
ar

-1
4

M
ay

-1
4

Ju
l-1

4

Se
p-

14

N
ov

-1
4

Ja
n-

15

M
ar

-1
5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
l-1

5

Se
p-

15

N
ov

-1
5

Ja
n-

16

M
ar

-1
6

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
l-1

6

Se
p-

16

Th
ou

sa
nd

 G
al

lo
ns

Monthly Recycled Water Demand

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 13 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-162  Page 3 of 8 

 

13
9

11
0

15
7

21
4

24
5

30
0

35
8 36

6
32

2
27

3
19

5
15

3 16
7

15
4 16

0
22

2
25

6
30

6
28

1
25

5
25

1
21

7
18

2
97

10
9

13
6 15

7
20

4
15

0
22

7
21

4 22
2

20
3

17
0

14
6

11
6

92
12

4
12

5 13
3

16
4

24
9

27
9

26
0

22
6

18
9

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Ja
n-

13

M
ar

-1
3

M
ay

-1
3

Ju
l-1

3

Se
p-

13

N
ov

-1
3

Ja
n-

14

M
ar

-1
4

M
ay

-1
4

Ju
l-1

4

Se
p-

14

N
ov

-1
4

Ja
n-

15

M
ar

-1
5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
l-1

5

Se
p-

15

N
ov

-1
5

Ja
n-

16

M
ar

-1
6

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
l-1

6

Se
p-

16

Monthly Water Consumption
Residential Gallons per Capita per Day

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 14 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-162  Page 4 of 8 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 15 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-162  Page 5 of 8 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 16 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-162  Page 6 of 8 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 17 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-162  Page 7 of 8 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 18 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-162  Page 8 of 8 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 19 of 112



 

 

Capital Improvement Projects 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 20 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-163 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking 
Water Reservoir R-12.4 - Calimesa 

 
At the regular meeting on July 16, 2014, the Board authorized the solicitation of bids for the 
construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon R-12.4 Reservoir located on Singleton Road in Calimesa 
[Director Memorandum No. 14-060].  On November 19, 2014, the Board of Directors awarded the 
construction contract for the reservoir facility to Gateway Pacific Contractors [Director 
Memorandum No. 14-091].   
 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the progress of the reservoir 
construction project. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 21 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-163  Page 2 of 4 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 22 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-163  Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 23 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-163  Page 4 of 4 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 24 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-164 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Notice of Completion for the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling 
Facility Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement Project  

 
On November 2, 2016 staff conducted a final inspection for the Wochholz Regional Water 
Recycling Facility Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement Project with Pascal & Ludwig. 
District staff considers the project complete and recommends filing the Notice of Completion and 
release the retention of $118,278 45 days following the filing of the Notice of Completion. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 25 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-164  Page 2 of 2 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 26 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-165 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Status Report on the Regional Drinking Water Purification and 
Recycled Water Purification Project 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District operates the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 
(YVRWFF) for production of drinking water.  The drinking water filtration facility is designed for an 
ultimate capacity of 36 million gallons per day (mgd) using the latest membrane barrier technology 
for the removal of macro, micro and molecular constituents that are commonly found in surface 
water streams and lakes. 
 
Today the filtration system consists of 13.6 mgd of microfiltration (MF) and 6.0 mgd of 
nanofiltration (NF) processes.  The 6.0 mgd NF system capacity allows the District to provide up 
to 8.0 mgd of drinking water at a blend ratio of 75:25 NF:MF, which is needed to minimize 
formation of regulated disinfection by products.  To increase the production capacity of the facility, 
an additional NF process should be installed. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 27 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-165  Page 2 of 3 

The District staff has analyzed the benefit of increasing the nanofiltration capacity by 3 mgd with 
a concentrate recycle process to increase the productivity and efficiency of the system while 
reducing the volume of the backwash water produced at the facility.  This system enhancement 
will increase the overall drinking water capacity of the facility from 8 mgd to 12 mgd while 
eliminating about 1.0 mgd of flow to the recycled water system.  
 
The benefit of this project would be to: (1) increase the efficiency of drinking water produced from 
the filtration facility from 85% to 95%; (2) decrease the amount of recycled water produced from 
the drinking water facility; (3) enhance the protection of the drinking water supply from increased 
salinity excursions and an upward overall salinity trend from source water originating from the 
State Water Project (a salinity peak in early 2014 and mid-2015 is shown below); and (4) maintain 
compliance with the Regional Water Quality Control Board Basin Plan objectives for the 
Beaumont, San Timoteo and Yucaipa Management Zones. 
 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an overview of the water quality enhancements 
planned for the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility and the Wochholz Regional 
Water Recycling Facility. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 28 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-165  Page 3 of 3 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 29 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-166 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Authorization to Implement Phase II of the Automated Meter 
Infrastructure Project  

 
There are several types of water meters used throughout the 
United States.  Typically, a standard water meter has a dial 
similar to a clock, with gradations around the perimeter to 
indicate the measuring unit and the amount of water used.  
Often times a small indicator wheel, like the triangle in the 
center of the 
dial to the left, 
is used to 
measure low 

flow 
conditions like 
a water leak. 
 

Water meter manufacturers have developed pulse 
or encoder registers that produce electronic output 
for radio transmitters, reading storage devices, and 
data logging devices.  These meters do not always 
have digital readouts, but they are certainly 
becoming more popular. 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 30 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 2 of 21 

What is an Automated Meter Reading (AMR) System? 
 
An Automated Meter Reading System allows for the collection of consumption/diagnostic data 
from a water meter that is transferred to a central location for billing, troubleshooting and 
analyzing.  Instead of manually reading each meter, the meter data in an AMR system is gathered 
by either a walk-by or drive-by automated reading device.  Therefore, meter reading accuracy is 
increased with an AMR system while continuing to require labor to gather the meter data.   
 
 
What is an Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) System? 
 
Advanced metering systems are comprised of state-of-the-art electronic/digital hardware and 
software, which combine interval data measurement with continuously available remote 
communications.  These systems enable measurement of detailed, time-based information and 
frequent collection and transmittal of such information.  Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) 
typically refers to the measurement and collection system that includes meters at the customer 
site, communication networks, and management systems that make the information readily 
available without the need to be in the proximity of the water meter to collect the data. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 31 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 3 of 21 

 
 
The benefits of an AMI system include: 

• System Operation Benefits are commonly associated with the reduction in meter reads 
and related management and administrative support, increased meter reading accuracy 
and improved utility asset management.  

• Customer Service Benefits include the early detection of meter failures, billing accuracy 
improvements, faster service restoration, and flexible billing cycles. 

• Financial Benefits accrue to the District from reduced equipment maintenance costs and 
reduced support expenses. 

 
 
Phase I of the Automated Meter Infrastructure Project 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has completed the installation of 5,065 water meters that need 
a transceiver to connect to a fixed base network to enhance the ability to record water 
consumption.  This represents about 40% of the District’s 12,637 water meters that will not need 
to be manually read each month.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 32 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 4 of 21 

By upgrading to a fixed base network and wirelessly transmitting data from the 5,065 upgraded 
water meters, the water meter reading staff will be able to focus on the conversion of the remaining 
60% of the water meters over time.  As new water meters are installed and old water meters are 
replaced, the new/upgraded meters would be added to the fixed base system upon installation 
and activated immediately.   
 
 
Phase II of the Automated Meter Infrastructure Project 
 
The next step of implementation of the Automated Meter Infrastructure (AMI) will be the 
installation of three new Sensus M-400 AMI Flex Net Base Station 2-way antennas and 5,065 
Sensus Smart Point 520M transceivers throughout the District that will transmit the meter data 
back to Regional Network Interface (RNI).  The necessary software to support the RNI will be 
hosted off-site through the Software as a Service (SAAS) option offered by Sensus. 
 
The Sensus Flex Net Base Stations will be mounted on top of reservoirs R12.4, R15.1, and R18.4 
and will have a mast style antenna that will have a total structure height of 52 feet.  These Base 
Stations are long range radio transceivers that communicate to and from the RNI with the Smart 
Point modules that are attached to each of the Sensus water meters.  The cost of the three new 
antennas will be $84,000.00 including installation.  Additionally, these three antenna locations will 
need an internet connection that will be provided by an industrial LTE broadband gateway.  Our 
application requires three AirLink Raven RV50 Industrial LTE Gateway devices that will cost 
$775.00 each, totaling $2,325.00 with a $60.00 total monthly fee for service and will be mounted 
with the base stations and antennas.  
 
The Sensus Flex Net Smart Point 520M is a radio transceiver that mounts to a modified reading 
lid with our existing meter boxes and makes a wired connection to the Sensus water meter.  The 
Smart Point 520M can obtain hourly readings, continuous flow measurements, and also send 
alerts of leak conditions.  The cost of the 5,065 Smart Points needed is $829,393 including 
installation.  The cost of the modified reading lids that accept the transceiver will total $151,950. 
 
Additional costs will consist of Sensus Analytic and RNI Training [$6,000], RNI Server set up fee 
[$7,725], Sensus Analytic and Integration fee [$5,625], and a Base Station Maintenance fee 
starting on year two [$3,000].  Additionally, if any of the existing meters have a damaged wire, the 
cost of the replacement wire will be $16.50 each. 
 
 
Roadmap to Full Functionality of the Automated Meter Infrastructure 
 
Phase 1 (Complete): 

 
Installation of AMI capable meters in replacement situations and new construction to test 
operation and durability of the physical meter while building a foundation for the future 
AMI implementation. [5,065 currently installed] 

 
Phase 2 (Scheduled for 2017 for a cost of $1,105,845): 
 

Activate 5,065 water meters with the installation of the required transceivers, retrofitted 
meter box lid, and programming.  Install three radio antennas with base stations and 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 33 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 5 of 21 

internet gateways to gather meter data and back load the information to the Regional 
Network Interface.  

 
Phase 3 (Scheduled for 2018 to 2020 for an estimated cost of $2,488,750, or $829,585 per year) 
 

Convert the remaining 7,572 meters in the system to AMI capable meters and transceivers 
with the retrofitted meter box lid.  The conversion to AMI by replacing the existing water 
meters will be distributed over three years.   

• 2018 - Upgrade 2,600 AMI capable meters with all required hardware for 
integration. 

• 2019 - Upgrade 2,600 AMI capable meters with all required hardware for 
integration. 

• 2020 - Upgrade 2,600 AMI capable meters with all required hardware for 
integration. 
 

Phase 4 (Future enhancements including Smart Lighting and SCADA) 
 

Consider expansion of FlexNet system to include Smart Lighting and System Control 
and Data Acquisition [SCADA] telemetry to take advantage of the Districts Fixed Base 
Infrastructure. 

 
 
District Staff Recommendations 
 
Therefore, the District staff suggests that the Board of Directors consider the following 
recommendations: 
 

1. Authorize the District staff to initiate the implementation of Phase 2 of the AMI Project for 
a sum not to exceed $1,105,845 from water deprecation reserves. 
 

2. Consider the adoption of a resolution setting and automatically adjusting the cost as a time 
and material expense related to the installation of fully integrated AMI water meters for all 
new installations. 
 

3. Authorize the District staff to pursue grant funding opportunities for the funding of Phase 
3 and plan for Capital Improvement Project budget funding each year. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 34 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 6 of 21 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 35 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 7 of 21 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 36 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 8 of 21 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 37 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 9 of 21 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 38 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 10 of 21 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 39 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 11 of 21 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 40 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 12 of 21 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 41 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 13 of 21 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 42 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 14 of 21 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 43 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 15 of 21 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 44 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 16 of 21 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 45 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 17 of 21 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 46 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 18 of 21 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 47 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 19 of 21 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 48 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 20 of 21 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 49 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-166  Page 21 of 21 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 50 of 112



 

 

Policy Issues 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 51 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-167 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Policy Discussion Regarding the Hauling of Drinking Water from 
Construction Meters Connected to the Potable Water System 

 
On October 4, 2016, the District staff received a request from Mr. Al Ineichen requesting a waiver 
in monthly fees and construction meter deposit for his use of potable water hauled to 36610 
Singleton Road, Calimesa.  Since the District staff does not have the authority to waive the 
monthly construction meter fees or the deposit for the construction meter, the item was scheduled 
for a discussion at the board workshop on October 25, 2016 [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-
161]. 
 

 
 
On October 25, 2016, the board members, District staff and Mr. Al Ineichen discussed the practice 
of hauling drinking water from the District’s drinking water system to property owned by Mr. Al 
Ineichen.   
 
The policy discussion was continued to the board meeting on November 1, 2016 as Director 
Memorandum No. 16-102.  Following the board meeting, the District staff noted the following 
elements that need to be considered as part of the policy regarding the hauling of drinking water: 

• Validate that the water hauled is used for residential use which will require a metered 
connection to the drinking water system; 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 52 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 2 of 13 

• If construction water is needed, the water type should be recycled water and not drinking 
water unless otherwise approved by the Board of Directors; 

• A construction meter will always be required to record water consumption for all water 
provided by the District; 

• Any unauthorized water use of water, including water taken from the District without the 
use of a water meter, shall be immediately assessed by the District; 

• The proposed policy should determine the amount of the monthly fixed charge; 
• The proposed policy should determine the amount of the Facility Capacity Charge to be 

applied to the water used; 
• The proposed policy should provide a locking mechanism to be used only by registered 

individuals for approved uses; 
• The District staff needs to evaluate the potential public risk that may occur from a locked 

hydrant that would normally be used for fire protection; 
• The proposed policy should determine if a new outlet is needed for a long-term hauling 

contract. 
 
Water Hauler’s License (State of California) 
 
Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code, Section 111120, the State of California requires 
a Water Hauler’s License to haul drinking water in bulk (250 gallons capacity or greater).  This 
license is needed anytime water is transported for drinking, culinary or other purposes involving 
a likelihood of water being ingested by humans. 
 
Water hauling vehicles are defined as self-propelled or towed vehicles having an attached water 
tank, with or without pumps, hoses and accessory equipment for filling or distribution of water.  
The tank must be 250 gallons capacity or higher and comply with all applicable State and Federal 
laws and regulations.  Use of convertible trucks, dump trucks or flat-bed trucks with detachable 
tanks is allowed if the tanks are securely attached.  Vehicles without a tank or detached tanks 
cannot be licensed.   
 
Since the Yucaipa Valley Water District could be subject to enforcement procedures and 
violations pursuant to California Health and Safety Code, Section 111120(f), the District staff will 
require permits are obtained as the first step in the procedure.  Therefore, the customer(s) need 
to pursue the required permit as a parallel process to the development of the water hauling policy. 
 
The application process for the customer to obtain the permit will typical require the following 
steps: 

• Applicant must obtain a Water Hauler’s License application (CDPH 8605) from the 
Department of Public Health, Food and Drug Branch (FDB). 

• Applicant must conduct water quality testing from the hauling vehicle by a laboratory 
certified by the California Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP), or the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA) as follows: 

o Bacteriological analyses (total coliform) and E. coli; and 
o Separate coliform tests are required for each water hauler.  Copies of the results 

need to be provided for review upon request from FDB. 
• Once licensed the FDB will conduct periodic, unannounced inspections of the water hauler 

to ensure that the Licensee is operating in compliance with all applicable state and federal 
laws and regulations: 

o Inspections include a review of required water testing, equipment maintenances, 
sanitation, and record keeping; and 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 53 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 3 of 13 

o Guidelines regarding equipment compliance are required pursuant to 21 CFR 
129.40. 

• The hauler shall keep a log of activities on board the vehicle: 
o Dates of cleaning and sanitation procedures; 
o Water sources used; 
o Delivery points, including dates and volumes delivered; 
o Copies of agreements, contracts, licenses; and 
o Test results of bacterial (coliform and E. coli) testing. 

• Water Hauler’s License in non-transferable. 
• The Water Hauler’s License must be renewed and the license fee/renewal fee is due 

annually with the State of California. See most current state requirements for fees.  
 

This condensed version of the California Health and Safety Code requirements for the Water 
Hauler’s License should be used for reference only.  A complete detailed description of the 
requirements should be obtained from the California Health and Safety Code (H&SC) Section 
111120. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 54 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 4 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 55 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 5 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 56 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 6 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 57 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 7 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 58 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 8 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 59 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 9 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 60 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 10 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 61 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 11 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 62 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 12 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 63 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-167  Page 13 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 64 of 112



 

 

Development Projects 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 65 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-160 

Date: October 25, 2016 

Subject: Overview of Development Agreement No. 2016-08 to Provide Water 
and Sewer Facilities and Service to the Private Development of 
Assessor Parcel Numbers 0322-102-49, 0322-102-50, and 0322-102-51 
by American Investments Management 

 
This development consists of three single family residences on three existing parcels, located to 
the south of Douglas Lane, between Custer Street and Douglas Street in the City of Yucaipa, San 
Bernardino County. 
 
The District staff has been working with the developers for the preparation of a development 
agreement.  The specific conditions of service for this project are included in Part G of the attached 
agreement.  
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 66 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 2 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 67 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 3 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 68 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 4 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 69 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 5 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 70 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 6 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 71 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 7 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 72 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 8 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 73 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 9 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 74 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 10 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 75 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 11 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 76 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 12 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 77 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 13 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 78 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 14 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 79 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 15 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 80 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-168  Page 16 of 16 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 81 of 112



 

 

Administrative Issues 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 82 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-169 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Overview of a Proposed Resolution Setting Fees for the Installation of 
Automated Meter Infrastructure for New Drinking Water and Recycled 
Water Services 

 
Resolution No. 18-2011 Section 2.7 Potable Water & Recycled Water Meter Installation Charge, 
is outdated in regards to the cost recovered by the District for the installation of 3/4”, 1”, and 1” 
fire service meters.  Specifically, the current charges are not sufficient to accommodate for the 
equipment required to operate an automated meter infrastructure.  It is important that new 
construction of a residence or business covers the full cost associated with these charges to the 
District rather than existing ratepayers.  
 
District staff recommends adoption of a new resolution to reflect the current and ongoing cost of 
installing Automatic Meter Infrastructure for 3/4”, 1” and 1” fire service meters. 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 83 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-169  Page 2 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
SETTING FEES FOR THE INSTALLATION OF AUTOMATED METER 

INFRASTRUCTURE FOR NEW DRINKING WATER AND RECYCLED WATER 
SERVICES 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District (District) has invested in the construction and 
operation of Automated Meter Infrastructure (AMI) that is currently being expanded for drinking 
water and recycled water customers throughout the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the construction of a new home or business in the District’s service area will be 
required to be connected to the AMI prior to receiving drinking water or recycled water service; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board of Directors by this Resolution to assist in the cost recovery 
of the required AMI equipment and installation costs for new development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of equipment and installation shall be updated on a regular basis to reflect 
the true and accurate cost of the AMI related to each meter installation including all required and 
related meter appurtenances. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District as follows:   
 
1. The cost associated with the hardware, software, installation, and equipment for the 

Automated Meter Infrastructure related to drinking water and recycled water service by 
the Yucaipa Valley Water District shall be invoiced and paid based on the actual cost of 
all labor, materials, and equipment, plus employee benefits, overhead and administrative 
surcharges pursuant to this resolution and other resolutions duly approved and adopted 
by the Board of Directors. 
 

2. The cost shall be calculated and updated as needed on a regular basis and set forth in 
the cost of service information provided on the District website. 
 

3. Payment of all related charges set forth in this resolution is required prior to installation of 
the drinking water or recycled water service pipeline. 
 

4. This Resolution shall be effective immediately and shall supersede previous resolutions 
setting forth the cost recovery of water meter installations.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of November, 2016. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 84 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-170 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Overview of a Claim for Tree Removal at 11975 4th Street, Yucaipa - 
Dini Martz 

 
On October 13, 2016, the Yucaipa Valley Water District received a claim from Dini Martz 
(“Claimant”) for damage to her trees at 11975 4th Street, Yucaipa resulting from various water 
system leaks.  
 
District records show a total 
five leaks since August 2008, 
on the water pipeline that 
passes through the east end 
of the property.  The 4” 
pipeline [P-3132] is 
positioned in an easement 
from Cedar Avenue, where it 
is connected to the 8” pipeline 
[P-51] and continues to the 
southeast corner of the Citi 
Bank parking lot between 3rd 
Street and 4th Street. 
 
The Claimant states that she 
needs to remove a large tree 
[Tree #1], which died as a 
result of a water leak 
underneath its roots.  The 
Claimant claims to have 
received a quote for tree 
removal of $500.00, this was 
not submitted with the claim.   
 
In addition, the Claimant is 
concerned about a second 
tree [Tree #2] that may be 
dying due to a possible 
different water leak.   
 
The claimant is also 
concerned about liability due 
to the proximity of these two 
trees to the adjacent Hitching Post mobile home park.  The Claimant states that she has received 
concerns from the mobile home park about the liability the trees pose to their residents.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 85 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170  Page 2 of 11 

 
Options for consideration: 
 

• Option #1 – Deny the claim based on available information and lack of definitive correlating 
evidence between the previous water leaks and the health of the trees.  Referring this 
claim to the District insurance company for further processing. 
 

• Option #2 – Direct District staff to remove and/or trim the trees as a result of the impact 
from previous water leaks.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 86 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170  Page 3 of 11 

 
Figure 2. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 87 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170  Page 4 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 88 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170  Page 5 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 89 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170  Page 6 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 90 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170  Page 7 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 91 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170  Page 8 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 92 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170  Page 9 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 93 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170  Page 10 of 11 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 94 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-170  Page 11 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 95 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-171 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Overview of a Suggested Revision to the District’s Participation in the 
OmniEarth Grant offered by the Santa Ana Watershed Project 
Authority 

 
On October 18, 2016, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to execute grant 
contracts and related agreements with the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority for the 
calculation and evaluation of outdoor irrigation usage by OmniEarth.  This geographical 
information system and data analysis program would use aerial images to differentiate between 
irrigated areas and non-irrigated areas for every parcel within the District’s service area. 
 
On November 16, 2016, the District staff attended an Esri Water and Wastewater User Group 
meeting and gathered information regarding the land cover analysis capabilities of our current 
geographical information system software.  Working together with the Esri staff, the District staff 
is proposing to perform the land cover data analysis in our service area utilizing our current Esri 
software. 
 
Therefore, since the District has not yet entered into the contract with OmniEarth, the District staff 
recommends performing the land cover analysis calculations in-house to build a robust 
geographical information system. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 96 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-172 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Consideration of Appointing a Representative to the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District Advisory Commission on Water Policy 

 
On April 7, 2016, the District staff notified the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District that 
Director Munoz will no longer be representing the Yucaipa Valley Water District as an alternate 
member at the Advisory Commission on Water Policy (“Advisory Commission”). 
 
The Board of Directors have requested that the appointment to the Advisory Commission be 
scheduled for a meeting when all board members are present.  The District staff anticipates 
scheduling this item for the board meeting on December 8, 2016, to discuss the appointment of 
a primary and alternate representative to the Advisory Commission.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 97 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-172  Page 2 of 2 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 98 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-173 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Reorganization of the Board of Directors 

 
At the regular board meeting on December 6, 2016, the District staff will provide an agenda item 
related to the reorganization of the Board of Directors.  This action is required following every 
regular election, to elect a President and a Vice-President for a two year term.1   
 
Due to the November 2016 elections, it is necessary to reorganize the officers of the Board and 
certify the results of the reorganization by adopting Resolution No. 2016-xx.   
 
 

                                            
1 California Water Code §30520 states, "within 30 days after the election of the first directors and thereafter within 30 
days after taking office … the directors shall meet and shall elect one of their number president and may elect one of 
their number vice president". 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 99 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-173  Page 2 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-xx 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
CONFIRMING THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 
 
 WHEREAS, California Water Code §30520 states, "Within 30 days after the election of 
the first directors and thereafter within 30 days after taking office … the directors shall meet and 
shall elect one of their number president and may elect one of their number vice president"; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 6, 2016, the Board of Directors elected a President and Vice-
President as documented below. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors has duly elected 
Director ____________________ and President and Director ____________________ as Vice-
President. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the President and Vice-President shall serve in such 
capacities until the next general district election; a vacancy or resignation of the President or Vice-
President occurs; or a change of officer(s) by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of 
Directors. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 6th day of December 2016. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 100 of 112



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-174 

Date: November 29, 2016 

Subject: Oath of Office for Yucaipa Valley Water District Director Lonni 
Granlund and Director Chris Mann 

 
On November 8, 2016, Chris Mann was elected to represent constituents in Division 1 and Lonni 
Granlund did not have an opponent during this election cycle, so she will be appointed in lieu of 
an election to represent constituents in Division 4. 
 
At this time it is appropriate to administer the oath of office to the board members in preparation 
for these individuals taking office at noon on Friday, December 2, 2016. 
 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 101 of 112



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-174  Page 2 of 2 

Oath of Office 
 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 102 of 112



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 103 of 112



 

 

Adjournment 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 104 of 112



January 2016 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

62 full time employees 
 
Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,397,500 
 Sewer Division - $11,820,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $537,250 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,754,750 
 
Number of Services: 12,434 water connections serving 17,179 units 

13,559 sewer connections serving 20,519 units 
64 recycled water connections 

 
Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 

27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 

205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 
Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 

5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 
Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 

1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
 0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 105 of 112



January 2016 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 
Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 106 of 112



January 2016 
 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 
One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  

This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 107 of 112



January 2016 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 108 of 112



January 2016 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 109 of 112



January 2016 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 110 of 112



January 2016 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 111 of 112



January 2016 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 29, 2016 - Page 112 of 112


	MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building
	12770 Second Street, Yucaipa
	MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Ken Munoz, Division 1
	Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2
	Director Jay Bogh, Division 3
	Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4
	Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5
	Staff Report - Water Recycling May Prompt New Environmental Concerns.pdf
	Water Recycling May Prompt New Environmental Concerns

	_161129 Workshop Agenda.pdf
	MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building
	12770 Second Street, Yucaipa
	MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Ken Munoz, Division 1
	Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2
	Director Jay Bogh, Division 3
	Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4
	Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5




